
Online Bookstore RFP Questions and Responses 

Please note that similar questions where consolidated when possible. If you believe a question you 
submitted was not answered email david_wahr@owens.edu.  

1. Given the current situation with the pandemic, is there any flexibility to allow for the 
submission of RFP responses electronically? 

a. Yes. You may email submissions in a standard PDF or Word format directly to 
david_wahr@owens.edu before the deadline of Friday, April 3, 2020 at noon.  

2. Please provide historical sales information including a breakdown of new, used, rental, 
and/or digital as well as any apparel and merchandise sales figures. 

Category FY 2016 FY2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 

Used 
         

216,371  
         

335,501  
         

357,949  
          

249,849  

New 
      

3,116,491  
     

2,804,594  
     

2,327,021  
      

1,749,357  

Digital 
            

17,789  
           

28,828  
           

64,254  
          

281,489  

Rental 
         

353,412  
         

311,853  
         

295,836  
          

199,821  

General/Non-Emblematic 
              

8,755  
           

26,069  
           

28,766  
            

29,338  

Supplies 
         

205,105  
         

114,769  
           

96,290  
            

99,053  

Apparel 
            

18,860  
           

26,723  
           

27,697  
            

24,826  

Gifts 
              

2,762  
             

5,048  
              

6,465  
              

4,195  

Convenience/Graduation 
            

58,015  
           

88,182  
           

87,940  
            

83,523  

Technology 
         

109,266  
         

133,788  
         

133,232  
          

144,637  

Totals 
      
4,106,826  

     
3,875,355  

     
3,425,450  

      
2,866,088  

a. Above figures are in whole dollars and represent sales from March through 
February. We do not have sales broken down by category for the current year at 
this time. The contract with our current provider began in FY2016.  

3. Are financial aid vouchers accepted in the bookstore as a form of payment? Or are 
students allocated dollars for course materials with Financial Aid? 

a. Yes. Students who anticipate an excess amount from financial aid remaining 
after tuition and fees are paid may request a book voucher. This voucher may 
only be used at the bookstore for required course materials and some supplies.  



4.  What percentage of overall sales in the bookstore came from financial aid? 

a. For Spring 2020 approximately 57% of total sales came from financial aid.  

5. What percentage of students are eligible for financial aid? 

a. In FY19, 59% of our students received some form of financial aid. This was 4,665 
out of 7,888 students excluding visiting, College Credit Plus (high school), and 
non-matriculating students.  

6. If a student doesn’t have Financial Aid, can they charge their books to the student 
account (bursar charge)?  If so, how much can they charge per semester?  

a. No. 

7. Does the College have any direct agreements in place with publishers or other third-
party course material providers? 

a. No. 

8. Which term would the new bookstore partner begin serving the campus population? 

a. Fall 2020. With classes starting on August 31, 2020 

9. What is the school’s Learning Management System (LMS)? 

a. Blackboard 

10. Does the campus utilize a third-party financial aid service? (i.e. TrimData, FALink, etc) 

a. No 

11. Can you provide the details around you current pricing model (% margin or % markup) 
for new, used, digital, rental?  

a. Our current provider uses standard industry price modeling and offers a price 
guarantee.  

12. Can you tell us more about the Course Fee Model Strategy that is currently used on 
campus?  

a. Currently only limited classes participate in a Course Fee Model Strategy. We 
have utilized Follett’s Access program to facilitate this. See question 13 for 
additional details.  

13. Is OCC considering a books in tuition model where there is a flat fee per credit hour for 
each student?  

a. This has been considered. However, there are no plans to move to this model for 
all classes.  

14. Do you currently have any departments/courses that leverage inclusive access licensing 
models and/or programs where course material fees are bundled within tuition? If so, 
how many courses and students? Also, with which publishers and/or eBook platforms 
are you utilizing? 



a. Yes. We are currently taking advantage of Follett’s Access program to provide 
course materials to approximately 2,300 students over 24 courses.  

b. We utilize various publishers and platforms including: McGraw-Hill, Cengage, 
Adobe Digital and others.  

15. Please share which courses or the percentage of courses currently supported by OER or 
other course fee models of distribution.  

a. In addition to the access program referenced above, four (4) courses with 15 
sections are currently supported by OER materials.  

16. Can you provide a list of the top 25 purchased ISBNs and associated department/course 
code for course material from the Fall 2019 or Spring 2020 semester?  

a. We do not require our current provider to report this information and do not 
have immediate access to this information. 

17. Is textbook affordability the highest priority item in the RFP?  

a. Yes. 

18. Would the College be willing to accept a reduced financial return if doing so would 
provide a measurable reduction in the cost of textbook and course materials for its 
students? 

a. Yes. 

19. Does OCC currently partner with area high schools/colleges?  If yes, can you please 
provide a breakdown of the sales for those schools?  

a. We do not partner with area high schools or colleges for direct sales. High school 
students utilize book vouchers to purchase course materials.  

20. Is it the College’s preference that the students ship to a campus location (and the 
College dedicates space for these packages) or would the College prefer that the 
student ship directly to their home address and not require space on campus?  

a. The College does not have a preference. However, the current thinking is that 
there will be a space on campus for distribution of course materials. 

21. Due to the time constraints of when a decision is made, what is the process for 
gathering Fall 2020 adoptions (since faculty will no longer be on campus)?  

a. This has yet to be determined. However, it is hoped that the successful bidder 
will be able to work with us to implement a strategy to gather the Fall 2020 
adoptions. Our adoptions are submitted by department chairs and deans and 
not by individual faculty.  

22. If the timeline has to be extended for any reason, is the College looking at doing a Spring 
2021 implementation? 

a. Yes 



23. So we understand correctly, it’s the College’s intention to have no brick-and-mortar 
retail presence? Is that space being completely repurposed?  

a. This is correct. However, the College is open to a proposal which might include a 
small retail presence. The current space occupied by the bookstore will be 
repurposed for another use.  

24. The RFP asks for either a stipend to cover receipt and distribution of textbooks OR a 
renovation and operating budget for managing the space. If the proposal including 
renovation and management of distribution would the College be open to having this 
space open and staffed all year round for physical selling of textbooks and general 
merchandise?  

a. Yes. With the understanding that the current bookstore footprint will not be 
available as it exists today.  

25. Is the space being designated for textbook receiving and distribution going to be re-
purposed for other campus use during non-peak course material season or will it be 
closed off? Essentially, is it temporary/modular or permanent but seasonal. 

a. This has not been determined and is somewhat dependent on the responses to 
this RFP.  

26. Who owns the current fixtures in the store? Will any of the shelving remain for staging 
online orders? If the College does not own, is there a buyout amount remaining on the 
current contract, and if so how much? 

a. . The fixtures are owned by the current provider. There is no buyout provision in 
the contract. Shelving will need to be obtained for staging online orders.  

27. How will graduation regalia and other items be sold/rented? Will you be looking for 
your chosen campus retail partner to help facilitate this process? If so, can you describe 
the process currently in place (order via third-party website directly and store 
distributes, store sells, store rents, etc.) and the revenue generated directly from 
graduation sales? 

a. This has not been determined and we welcome solutions being put forth in RFP 
responses. 


